
 
 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

(All items listed for discussion and possible action) 
 

Virtual Meeting 
 

Thursday, January 7, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call of Board Members 
 

3. Audience Participation Period (limit 4 minutes per speaker) 
 
4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – December 10, 2020 
 
5. For Possible Action 

a. Resolution 2021-01, Designating Public Places for the Posting of Meeting 
Notices 

b. 2021 Addendum to SEH Contract 
c. 2021 Addendum to Terracare Contract 

 
6. For Discussion 

a. Security Guard 
 

7. Reports 
a. Correspondence 
b. Mayor 
c. Members of Town Board  
d. Staff  
 

8. Future Agenda Items 
 

9. Adjournment 
 
STUDY SESSION  
Municipal Code Revisions regarding outdoor storage of vehicles and junk 

 



 
 

MINUTES             
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

December 10, 2020 
 

 
Call to Order/Roll Call 
The virtual meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. via Zoom. 
 
The following Trustees were present:  Josie Cockrell, Scott Freas, Amy Snell-Johnson, Debby 
Farreau, Lori Finch, Pam Thompson and Mayor Jones.  A quorum was present. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Mayor Jones moved, seconded by Trustee Snell-Johnson, to approve the following items on the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes – November 5, 2020 
b. Financial Reports – November 2020 

 
The motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Public Hearing – 6740 S. Waco Street Minor Subdivision Application 
Mayor Jones opened the hearing at 6:33 p.m.  Town Planner Matthew Nilsen reported there had been 
no substantive changes from the initial Staff Report other than the inclusion of the Public 
Improvements Agreement between the landowner and ACWWA allowing for connection to the water 
system when the lots are developed.  He noted the application meets all the criteria for approval for a 
minor subdivision.   
 
Mayor Jones solicited public comment: 
 

Sebring Megill, 6780 S. Waco Street, noted that any development on the lots could increase 
turnaround traffic in his driveway without changes to the median. 
 
Jason Luce, 18247 E. Briarwood Place, also expressed concern about increased traffic in the 
cul-de-sac due to limited access.   

 
Mayor Jones closed the public hearing at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Trustee Cockrell noted the question of access is outside the scope of the public hearing, which Town 
Planner Nilsen affirmed.   
 
Mayor Jones moved that the Planning Commission find that the requested Minor Subdivision at 6740 
S Waco Street meets the criteria of Chapters 16 and 17 of the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code and, 
based upon such findings, approve the Minor Subdivision Plat and Subdivision Agreement, subject to 
the following condition:  
 

All future proposed site development, alterations and expansions shall obtain all requisite 
Town approvals and display conformance with all other applicable provisions and development 
standards of the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code. 



 
Following a second by Trustee Cockrell, the motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Public Hearing – 2021 Budget 
Mayor Jones opened the budget public hearing at 6;54 p.m.  Town Administrator Proctor presented 
the budget, noting that due to construction delays on the gates, $126,457 has been moved from the 
2020 budget to the 2021 budget.  There being no public comment, Mayor Jones closed the hearing at 
7:01 p.m. 
 
Mayor Jones moved to approve the 2021 Proposed Budget, seconded by Trustee Finch.  The motion 
passed by unanimous roll call vote  
 
Reports 
Mayor 
Mayor Jones:  

• Thanked all the residents who participated in the study sessions or provided comments to the 
Board regarding outdoor vehicle storage.   

• Along with Trustee Farreau, participated in a call with Arapahoe County regarding 
improvements to the median and turning north from Arapahoe Road onto S. Buckley Road.  
Trustee Farreau inquired about a sidewalk along the south side of Arapahoe Road between S. 
Buckley and S. Lewiston Way; Arapahoe County agreed to provide the Town with engineering 
and construction drawings.  The Board will discuss applying for an Open Space grant to 
construct this sidewalk.   

• Asked if there was any interest in a Foxfield Food Drive after the holidays, noting the need will 
not lessen during the winter.  Resident Vanessa Guzman offered to provide a trailer for 
collection and delivery of donations.  The Board thanked Ms. Guzman and will move forward 
with this food drive. 

 
Members of the Town Board 
Trustee Cockrell reported that DRCOG has a Colorado Greenhouse Gas Pollution Reduction 
roadmap available to the public. 
 
Trustee Freas would like to pursue the idea of a fund for Roads Maintenance/Improvement separate 
from the General Fund. 
 
Trustee Thompson:  

• Noted the trees will need winter watering. 

• Again requested additional Sheriff’s patrols.  Town Clerk Gallivan has requested this but no 
deputies have volunteered at this time.  Hiring a Security Guard was discussed. 

• Would like the Town to implement support for Foxfield Village Center businesses for the 
holidays. 

 
Town Staff 
Town Administrator Proctor reported construction has begun on the excavation and culverts in 
preparation for installation of the gates in January. 
 
Town Administrator Proctor noted several people had contacted the Town regarding the proposed 
changes to the Code concerning excess vehicles.  She asked if the Board would like to suspend 
violation notices for excess vehicles until an ordinance with the proposed changes has been adopted.  
The Board agreed to this. 
 
Town Clerk Gallivan reported the Large Item Pick-Up is scheduled for Saturday, December 19.  The 
forecast looks promising for that date. 
 
 
 



 
 
The Code changes regarding Excess Vehicles and Outdoor Storage will be discussed at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on January 7, 2021.  There will be a public hearing on the proposed ordinance for 
those changes on January 21. 
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting at 7:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
                                                                       Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk 
 
                   
                             
      _________________________________________  
      Lisa Jones, Mayor  
 



  Item # 5a 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk 
 
DATE:  January 7, 2021 
 
RE: Resolution 2021-01 Establishing a Designated Place for the Posting of Meeting 

Notices Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(c)  
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached for Board consideration is Resolution 2021-01 designating the Town website as the 
official posting location for meeting notices.  The Town may additionally post notices on any 
Town social media sites and at the three physical bulletin boards but that is not required by 
state statute. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve Resolution 2020-01 Establishing a Designated Place for the Posting of 
Meeting Notices Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(c).” 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Exhibit A:  Resolution 2021-01  
 
 
 

 

 



Trustee’s Resolution Resolution No. 01, Series 2021 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD 

DESIGNATING PUBLIC PLACES FOR THE POSTING OF MEETING NOTICES AS 

REQUIRED BY THE COLORADO OPEN MEETINGS LAW 
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §24-6-402, the Open Meetings Law, requires that the public place or 

places for posting notices of public meetings shall be designated annually at the local public 

body's first regular meeting of each calendar year; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Foxfield, in compliance with C.R.S. 

§ 24-6-402(2)(c) of the Open Meetings Law, hereby designates the Town website at 

https://townoffoxfield.colorado.gov as the official place for posting notices.  The Town may 

additionally post notices at any Town social media accounts and at the bulletin boards at the 

following locations: 

 

a.  The east side of East Easter Way at its intersection with East Fremont Avenue. 

 
b.  The east side of South Richfield Street just north of its intersection with East Davies 

Avenue. 

 
c.  The east side of South Waco Street just south of its intersection with East Davies 

Avenue. 

 
The Town Clerk shall be responsible for posting the required notices no later than twenty-four 

(24) hours prior to the holding of the meeting.  All meeting notices shall include specific agenda 

information, where possible. 
 

 
 

PASSED ON FIRST AND FINAL READING THIS _______
 
day of January, 2021. 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO 
 
 
 
 

 
Lisa Jones, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk 

https://townoffoxfield.colorado.gov/
clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

clerk
Typewritten Text



                                                  Item # 5b 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 07, 2021  
 
RE:  SEH 2021 Addendum to SEH Contract 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Attached is SEH’s proposed 2021 rates and draft contract addendum.  The rate increases reflect 

2021 annual salary adjustments of 3%.  The Board is asked to acknowledge that the original 

signed contract and general conditions will remain and the Town of Foxfield is approving the 

rate increases through the end of 2021.  

 

ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit A – SEH 2021 Contract Addendum and Rates Letter Proposal 

 

 



 

 

Engineers   |   Architects   |   Planners   |   Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 2000 South Colorado Boulevard, Suite 6000, Colorado Center Tower One, Denver, CO 80222-7938 

SEH is an equal opportunity employer   |   www.sehinc.com   |   720.540.6800   |   800.490.4966   |   888.908.8166 fax 

 
December 22, 2020 RE:    Town of Foxfield 2021 On-Call 
                Engineering Services Contract 
                
  
                
Ms. Karen Proctor 
Town Administrator 
Town of Foxfield 
P.O. Box 461450 
Foxfield, CO 80046 
 
 
Dear Karen: 
 
Please find attached SEH’s proposed 2021 rates and draft contract addendum. Similar to past updates, the 
rate increases reflect annual salary adjustments.  
 
After review of the statement below, if all looks acceptable, please sign and return a copy for my files 
acknowledging the originally signed contract and general conditions remains in force, and that the Town of 
Foxfield finds our rates to be acceptable through the end of 2021. 
  
"The agreement entered into between Short Elliott Hendrickson Incorporated and the Town of Foxfield, 
signed and dated, December 14, 2014, is hereby extended through December 31, 2021, and SEH’s 
attached 2021 Rate Schedule is hereby accepted".   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

 
 
 

Scott Jardine, PE (CO), LEED AP          
Project Manager    
 
 
Accepted for Town of Foxfield 
 
By:  ___________________________                                         
 
 
Title: __________________________ 
 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 
 
Attachments: 2021 Foxfield Contract Addendum, SEH 2021 Rate Schedule  
Cc:  Rick Coldsnow, PE, Principal – Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A





Sept. 5th, 2022

Denver

23
December 20 Rick Coldsnow Principal 

SEH

           Jessica Pease



Exhibit B  
 

Rate Sheet 
Through December 31, 2021 

 
 
Name Title Hourly Rate 
Rick Coldsnow, Paul Wells, 
Chuck Gustafson 

Principal / Group Manager $227.00 

Scott Jardine, Jon Larson, Steve 
Kaye, Jason Triplett, Tom 
Wrona, Mike Perez 

Senior Project Manager $202.00 

George Robinson Survey Manager $206.00 
Matt Massa, Annette Marquez, 
Tim Nuetzel 

Senior Project Engineer II  $176.00 

Erica Olsen, David Hoesly,  
Jimmie Hayson, Steve 
Halewski 

Senior Project Engineer I $157.00 

Scott Klinker, Kevin Martin Survey Field Chief $146.00 
Jennifer Russell, Kit Clunis Professional Engineer II $135.00 
Craig Sweney, Justin Jones, 
Karen Kulesza, Craig Burgess 

Professional Engineer I $124.00 

Mitch Wagner, Katie Croell, 
Emma Elefante 

Staff Engineer II $112.00 

Gavin Macwilliam, Craig 
Hayson 

Staff Engineer I $107.00 

Dan Sundeen, Stan Barnett Senior Designer $145.00 
William Brumbaugh Designer  $96.00 
Suzie O’Connor Accounting $129.00 
Jessica Pease, Kari Young Administration $95.00 
Bob Ewing Utility Locator $98.00 
TBD Engineer Intern $71.00 
TBD Survey instrument person $110.00 
   
Expenses   
Tier 3 Drone  $135.00/Hr 
3D Scanner (SX-10)  $35.00/Hr 
Survey Equipment  $30.00/Hr 
Magnetometer  $10.00/Hr 
Subconsultants (preapproved)  Cost + 5% 
Vehicle Mileage  Current IRS Federal 

mileage rate 
Field Vehicle  $4.50/Hr + mileage 
All other expenses  At cost 

 
 
 
 

12/22/2020 
T:\DSME\Public\Foxfield Town Engineer\2021\Foxfield 2021 On-Call Addendum & Rates - Final.docx 



  Item # 5c 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 7, 2021  
 
RE:  Sixth Addendum to Agreement for Services with Terracare Associates 
 
 
DISSCUSION: 
On March 3, 2016 the Town of Foxfield entered into an Agreement for Services with Terracare 

Associates.  Attached for approval is the Sixth Addendum to the Agreement for Services with 

Terracare that will be effective until December 31, 2021 and will be retroactive to January 1, 

2021.  They did not increase our rates from 2019 to 2020.  This increase is approximately 12% 

from the 2020 rates.  

Mr. Winfield from Terracare indicated that the increase is a direct correlation to the labor 

market in Denver Metro area.  Terracare’s ability to hire quality people that are reliable and 

exhibit care has been a difficult task.  They have tried to keep costs under control and offer 

Foxfield the lowest service pricing possible, however this specific line has spiraled out of control 

and they have had to adjust to the market just to field adequate crews to address all their 

projects.  Last year with the pandemic, Terracare struggled to get crew members even offering 

close to twice the wage they began the season with.  They do not foresee any change going into 

2021 thus far, especially with the soon-to-come extended unemployment benefit.  Mr. Winfield 

stated that they will continue to do as much as possible for the Town and work hard to keep 

the costs down. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A:  Sixth Addendum to Agreement for Services with Terracare Associates 
Exhibit B:  Agreement for Services with Terracare 
 
 

 

 



 

  

 

 

SIXTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

  

 

  THIS SIXTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is made and entered into this 

day of ______________, 2021, by and between the Town of Foxfield, State of Colorado (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Town") and Terracare Associates, (the "Contractor").   

  

RECITALS: 

 

A. On March 3, 2016, the Town and Contractor entered into an Agreement for Services (the 

“Agreement”).  

 

B. The parties desire to authorize an extension of this Agreement and the 2021 pricing 

approved in this Sixth Addendum until December 31, 2021 and be retroactive to January 

1, 2021 with this approval of this Sixth Addendum.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed that for the consideration hereinafter set forth, that 

Contractor shall continue to provide services to the Town as provide in the 2016 Agreement and 

2021 pricing in the Sixth Addendum. 

 

1. Contractor shall continue to provide the services defined in Attachment A for a total 

contract price of $55,694 in 2021.  The pricing attachment contains a provision for Winter 

Watering of all spruce and pine trees in the amount of $1,210.00 that shall only be 

performed at the direction of the Town Administrator. 

   

 2. The original Agreement is in full force and effect and is hereby ratified by the Town and 

the Contractor.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate.  

  

 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO  

    

 

By:  ____________________________________  

                              Lisa Jones, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk  

          

  

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



 

  

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR 

      

By: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF    ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

____________________, 2021, by ____________________________ as _______________________ 

of  __________________________________. 

 

My commission expires: 

 

(S E A L)       ____________________________________ 

Notary Public 

 



clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A





clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

clerk
Typewritten Text



























                                                  Item # 6a 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 7, 2021  
 
RE:  Security Guard 
 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Each year in the Town’s annual budget there is money allocated for “Off Duty Officer Patrols”.  

Ten thousand dollars ($10,000) was approved as part of the 2021 budget for off duty officers 

and over the past two years, less than $5,000 has been spent each year.  The rate for an off-

duty Arapahoe County Sheriff’s Deputy is $60/hour.  This job is voluntary for the officers and it 

has been difficult to get much interest in the position.   

 

The Board asked me to contact Chenango for information regarding the security guards they 

use.  The name of the company that provides their security guards is Great Events.  They pay 

$23/hour and are using them six randomly selected nights per month, 8-hour shifts (about 

$1100/month), with extra shifts around this time of year due to package thefts, etc. They 

believe that their presence has made a real difference and feel their community seems to 

appreciate it. 

Is the Board interested in pursuing this further? Would the Board like staff to contact Great 

Events and/or additional security guard companies for more information and rates? 

  

 

 



                                                  Study Session  

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 7, 2021  
 
RE:  Municipal Code Revisions 
 

DISCUSSION: 

This study session is to finalize the changes to the Municipal Code regarding outdoor storage of 

vehicles and to continue discussion on outdoor storage of “junk, trash, garbage..”.   

Below are the sections from the current Municipal code that deal with outdoor storage of 

vehicles and junk.   Staff has made edits based on the Board’s previous discussions. A public 

hearing will be scheduled when these revisions have been approved by the Board. 

CODE Sec. 7-1-20. Nuisance defined. 

Nuisance includes: 

(7) The existence, without limitation, of any of the following conditions: 

 a. Outdoor storage. 

  1. No person shall be permitted to store items or materials in a public right-of- 

  way. 

  2. The accumulation of junk, trash, garbage, stale or odorous matter, including  
  improperly maintained compost or manure piles that emit odor or similar  
  materials that constitute a threat to the health or safety of any person, or that  
  contribute to blight and property land degradation, is prohibited. 
 
  3. The outdoor storage or accumulation of the following items on private   
  property, other than in a fully enclosed structure or properly screened, is   
  prohibited: 
 



                                                  Study Session  

   a) Attractive nuisances generally considered dangerous to children,  
   including abandoned, broken or neglected vehicles, equipment,   
   machinery, refrigerators and freezers, hazardous pools or excavations  
   related to construction sites. 
 
   b) Tools, equipment, inventory and other supplies utilized in   
   the operation of a business or more than one (1) vehicle used in   
   operation of a business,  whether such business is a home occupation  
   being conducted in accordance with the zoning regulations contained in  
   Chapter 16 of this Code, or is conducted off-site. 
 
   c) Tools, equipment and other supplies utilized in construction or   
   landscaping. However, homeowners who have a current, valid building  
   permit are allowed to neatly store small quantities of required supplies  
   during construction or remodeling. 
 
   d) The parking or storage of any unlicensed or inoperable vehicle. This  
   Subparagraph is not meant to prohibit outside storage of bona fide  
   collector's items when stored in compliance with Section 42-12-101, et  
   seq., C.R.S., and other applicable ordinances. 
 
   e) The parking or storage of any passenger vehicle, recreational other  
   vehicle trailer, boat or other articles of personal property, not   
   owned by the occupant of the property upon which it is parked, stored or 
   used, for longer than a period of ten (10) days. 
 
   f) The parking or storage of more than a total of ten (10) vehicles   
   (Passenger or Other) with a maximum of five (5) of the ten (10) being  
   other vehicles. Any vehicles in addition to those allowed by this   
   paragraph must be screened from passing traffic and out of sight of  
   contiguous property owners. Screening must be in compliance with all  
   other sections of the Code. 
 
   g) It is unlawful to park, store or permit to stand any passenger vehicle on 
   a portion of residential property unless the vehicle is parked on a   
   driveway that connects to a public street.  
 
   g) The parking or storage of commercial or industrial vehicles, except  
   that one (1) vehicle used in the operation of a business by an owner and  
   or occupant of the property is permitted: (a) in accordance with Chapter  
   16 of this Code applicable to home occupations; or (b) to allow for an  
   occupant of a residence who is provided a business vehicle for personal  
   use. 
 



                                                  Study Session  

   h) The parking or storage of any Class 6-9 vehicle (weight exceeding  
   19,501 pounds). vehicle with a gross  weight greater than thirty-six  
   thousand (36,000) pounds, recreational vehicles excluded. 
 
7-1-10 Definitions: 
Collector's item means a motor vehicle or implement of husbandry that is at least twenty-five 

(25) years old and is of historic or special interest. In order to be considered a collector's item, a 

motor vehicle must meet all criteria of a "collector's item" as defined in Section 42-12-101, et 

seq., C.R.S., in addition to all other applicable statutes and ordinances. 

Garbage means and includes any vegetable or animal refuse, food or food product, matter 

from a kitchen, offal or carcass of a dead animal which, if deposited within the Town other than 

in a garbage receptacle, tends to create a danger to public health, safety and welfare or to 

impair the local environment. The use in this Section is not meant to prohibit properly 

maintained, odorless compost or manure piles.  

Hazard to public health, safety and welfare shall include any activity so recognized by the laws 

and regulations of the United States, the State or the ordinances of the Town. Such hazards 

shall also include, but not be limited to, activities likely to cause foul or offensive odors, 

promote the growth or propagation of disease-carrying insects, pollute the air or ground waters 

of adjacent property, create loud or offensive sounds, cause drainage and runoff to occur in 

other than historical patterns or dead trees or vegetation that constitute such a hazard.  

Implement of husbandry means every vehicle, farm tractor or machine that is designed, 

adapted or used for agricultural purposes.  

Inoperable vehicle includes any vehicle that:  

a. Would be required to be licensed if operated on a public highway, but does not display 

current, valid license plates;  

b. Does not work, move or run;  

c. Is not functioning;  

d. Is not operable for the function for which it was designed; or  

e. Does not comply with the minimum safety requirements of the Colorado Motor Vehicle Law.  

Junk shall include any old, used or secondhand materials of any kind including, without 

limitation, cloth, rags, clothing, paper, rubbish, bottles; rubber, iron, tires, brass, copper or 

other metal; furniture; refrigerators, freezers, all other appliances; the parts of vehicles, 

apparatuses and contrivances and parts thereof which are no longer in use; any used building 

materials, boards or other lumber, cement blocks, bricks or other second hand building 

materials; or any discarded machinery, vehicles or any other article or thing commonly known 

and classified as junk.  



                                                  Study Session  

Litter means the scattering or dropping of rubbish, trash or other matter, organic or mineral. 

Other Vehicles means class 4-5 (14,000-19,500 pounds) and Recreational Vehicle classes A,B 
and C. Other vehicles also include trailers (with or without vehicles on them), ATVs, jet skis and 
boats.     
 
Trash means that which is worthless or useless and includes but is not limited to any and every 

refuse, rubbish, garbage, debris, waste material, paper, cartons, bottles, boxes, crates, barrels, 

plastic object, wooden object: wood (except stacked firewood and stacked construction 

materials), tree branches, yard trimmings, dead plant material; wood or upholstered furniture 

or bedding; rubber, metals, tin or aluminum cans, metal furniture; chemical compound, 

petroleum product or compound, paint; automobile part or accessory, tire, wheel; food or food 

product; solvent, dye, beverage; offal composed of animal matter or vegetable matter or both; 

dirt, rock, pieces of concrete, bricks, glass, crockery or other minerals or mineral wastes; junk; 

or any noxious or offensive matter whatsoever. However, such does not include earth and 

waste from building construction during the period in which a valid building permit issued by 

the Town is applicable.  

Passenger Vehicle means Class 1-3 (weight under 14,000 pounds).  Includes, but is not limited 

to: automobiles, four-wheel drive passenger vehicles, pick-up trucks, passenger vans, 

motorcycles or SUVs.  a machine propelled by power other than human power designed to 

travel along the ground, in the air or through water by use of wheels, treads, runners, slides, 

wings or hulls and to transport persons or property, to pull non-self-propelled vehicles or 

machinery, and includes, but is not limited to: automobile, airplane, boat, bus, truck, trailer, 

motorcycle, motor home, recreational vehicle, camper, truck tractor, implements of husbandry, 

mobile machinery and self-propelled construction equipment. For the purposes of this Section, 

the term vehicle includes implements of husbandry.   

 

EXHIBIT: 

Exhibit A:  Vehicle descriptions with examples of vehicle weights 

 



  Exhibit A 

VEHICLE WEIGHTS 

 



  Exhibit A 

Class 

1 
Light truck 

0–6,000 

pounds (0–

2,722 kg) 

Chevrolet Colorado/GMC Canyon, Ford 

Ranger, Nissan Navara, Jeep Gladiator, Toyota 

Tacoma, Honda Ridgeline FWD[8] 

Class 

2a 
Light truck 

6,001–8,500 

pounds 

(2,722–

3,856 kg) 

Chevrolet Silverado/GMC Sierra 1500, Ford F-

150, Nissan Titan, Ram 1500, Toyota Tundra, Dodge 

Dakota, Honda Ridgeline AWD[8][9][10] 

Class 

2b 

Light/Medium 

truck 

8,501–

10,000 

pounds 

(3,856–

4,536 kg) 

Chevrolet Silverado/GMC Sierra 2500, Ford F-

250, Nissan Titan XD, Ram 2500[8][9][10] 

Class 

3 
Medium truck 

10,001–

14,000 

pounds 

(4,536–

6,350 kg) 

Isuzu NPR,[11] Chevrolet Silverado/GMC Sierra 

3500, Ford F-350, Ram 3500, Ford F-450 (pickup only) 

Class 

4 
Medium truck 

14,001–

16,000 

pounds 

(6,351–

7,257 kg) 

Isuzu NPR-HD,[11] Chevrolet Silverado 4500, Ford F-

450 (chassis cab), Ram 4500[8] 

Class 

5 
Medium truck 

16,001–

19,500 

pounds 

(7,258–

8,845 kg) 

Isuzu NRR,[11] Chevrolet Silverado 5500, Ford F-

550, Ram 5500, Kenworth 

T170, Peterbilt 325, International TerraStar [12] 

Class 

6 
Medium truck 

19,501–

26,000 

pounds 

(8,846–

11,793 kg) 

Chevrolet Kodiak C6500, Ford F-650, Kenworth 

T270, Peterbilt 330, International Durastar [13] 

Class 

7 
Heavy truck 26,001–

33,000 

Autocar ACMD, GMC C7500, Kenworth T470 & T440 & 

T370, Peterbilt 220 & 337, Ford F-750 [14] 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Colorado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_Ranger
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_Ranger
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nissan_Navara
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jeep_Gladiator
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Toyota_Tacoma
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Toyota_Tacoma
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Honda_Ridgeline_(2017%E2%80%93present)
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-WRC1-8
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-150
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-150
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nissan_Titan
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ram_Pickup
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Toyota_Tundra
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dodge_Dakota
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dodge_Dakota
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Honda_Ridgeline
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-WRC1-8
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-TruckTrend1-9
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-USEPA1-10
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-250
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-250
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nissan_Titan
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ram_Pickup
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-WRC1-8
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-TruckTrend1-9
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-USEPA1-10
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Isuzu_Elf
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-:0-11
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-350
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ram_Pickup
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-450
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-:0-11
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-450
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-450
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ram_Pickup
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-WRC1-8
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-:0-11
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Silverado
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-550
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-550
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ram_Pickup
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Peterbilt
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_TerraStar
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-AutoByTel1-12
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chevrolet_Kodiak
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ford_F-650
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Peterbilt
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_Durastar
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-GMC1-13
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Autocar_Company
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-ITD1-14


  Exhibit A 

pounds 

(11,794–

14,969 kg) 

Class 

8 
Heavy truck 

33,001 

pounds 

(14,969 kg) + 

Autocar ACX, Autocar DC, International 

WorkStar, Freightliner Cascadia, Kenworth 

T600, Kenworth T660, Kenworth T680, Kenworth 

W900, Kenworth W990, Kenworth T880, Kenworth 

T800 Orange EV T-Series Electric, Mack Granite, 

Peterbilt 579, Peterbilt 389[15] - Semi-trailer trucks fall 

into this category 

 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Autocar_Company
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_WorkStar
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_WorkStar
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Freightliner_Cascadia
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenworth_T600
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenworth_T600
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenworth_T660
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenworth_T680
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mack_Granite
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Truck_classification#cite_note-15
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Semi-trailer_truck



